


























































































































PUBLIC VERSION 

'811 patent, col. 2:60-65; Tr. (Drysdale) at 931 :5-7. Given the disclosure of the alleged trade 

secret in the '811 patent, Complainants cannot demonstrate a misappropriation 

b. The use of 
- is reasonably ascertainable through reverse 
engineering. 

Jawbone's use of 

is not a trade secret because it would have been 

readily ascertainable through reverse engineering Jawbone's UP band. Information that can be 

readily ascertainable through reverse engineering a commercial product is not a trade secret. 

Sausage Casings, 1984 WL 273789, at *106; Rubber Resins, 2014 WL 7497801, at *11 (finding 

that there was no trade secret because "reverse-engineering demonstrates that the use of [* * *] 

was readily ascertainable from the infrared examination by analytical chemists"); 18 U.S.C. § 

1839(3); see also UTSA § 1(4)(i) (same). 

Jawbone released the original version of the UP band in November 2011 and a 

redesigned version in November 2012. CX-2890C (Chakravarthula DWS) at Q/A 10; CX-

2887C (Lara DWS) at Q/A 13. Thus, both versions of the UP band were released before 

Flextronics had access to Jawbone confidential materials. As acknowledged by Complainants' 

own witnesses, the process flow used to build the UP band would have been ascertainable by 

Jawbone's competitors and other interested parties, such as Flextronics, through reverse 

engineering the UP band. CX-2888C (Drydale DWS) at Q/A 15 (testifying that reverse 

engineering would allow a competitor to determine that Jawbone " 

"); CX-2895C (Tulkoff 

DWS) at Q/A 109 ("Reverse engineering is able to identify some of the general flow .... "). 
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Moreover, not only could a company such as Flextronics learn the process flow used to 

manufacture the UP band from reverse engineering, Flextronics in fact did so. 

A Flextronics's presentation dated February 28, 2012, before the start of Flextronics's 

and Jawbone's relationship, details the results of an analysis of the UP band. RX-1618C-l; Tr. 

(Tulkoff) at 1177: 17-1178:7, 1179:20-24. As shown in the presentation, Flextronics determined 

that after being attached to the band, "to protect" them from the overmolding process, the 

electronic components were "potted:" 

Potting used to protect fragile PCBA components 

' ' ' ' . 
" . . . 

' 

" ' ' . 
' ' ' . 

' ' ' ' ' . . . . 
' . . . . 
" 

Overmold end 
connectors onto 
spring steel band 

. . 
' . . 

----------

Attath electronics 
to band 

-----------

RX-1618C-7 

Pot the PCBA 
components to 
protect them 

RX-1618C-9 
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Flextronics also determined that the overmolding consisted of TPE resin and was applied using 

injection molding. RX-1618C-6, -9. 

"Abbreviated teardowns" conducted by Fitbit's expert, Dr. Scott, show the information 

that can be readily obtained from the UP and UP24 bands. RX-1558C (Scott RWS) at QIA 63. 

Through his abbreviated teardowns, Dr. Scott determined that the outermost layer of the UP and 

UP24 bands was a thermoplastic polyurethane ("TPU") material. Id. at QI A 119-23, 160-61. 

The presence of mold parting lines and flash indicated that this layer was applied by molding 

processes. Id. at QI A 122, QI A 160-61. Consistent with Dr. Scott's analysis of the compositi'on 

of the outermolding, Jawbone's website discloses that the UP24 is "encased non-latex, medical-

grade hypoallergenic TPU rubber." RX-2070 at 1. "TPU" is an abbreviation for "thermoplastic 

polyurethane." RX-1558C (Scott RWS) at QIA 126. 

Removing the outer overmolding, Dr. Scott uncovered a layer of material formed from "a 

thermoplastic elastomer including ethylene, propylene, and other co-monomers." Id. at QIA 129, 
I 

160-61. The layer had mold parting lines and flash indicating that this layer was also applied by 

a molding process. Id. at QIA 131, QIA 160-61. Dr. Scott's analysis is consistent with a New 

York Times article, published on March 14, 2013, showing a blow out of the UP band and 

highlighting various features. RX-1953 at 1. Among the features highlighted is the "Bracelet 

Exterior" which is described as being a "molded thermoplastic core." Id. 

Removing the intermediate overmolding· layer, Scott uncovered a steel band with various 

electronic components attached. RX-1558C (Scott RWS) at QIA 133, 160-61. Some of the 

components were covered by red, black, transparent, and colorless translucent moldings. Id. at 

QI A 134, 160-61. Both the red material and the colorless transparent material were 

polycarbonate. Id. at QIA 136, 140, 160-61. Some of the black moldings were comprised of 
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polycarbonate reinforced with glass fibers, while others were formed from polycarbonate "with 

some evidence of additional additive." Id. at QI A 136-38, 160-61. A black polymeric material 

consisting primarily of an aliphatic polyarnide with evidence of a block polyether covered some 

of the electronic components, including the PCB with the antenna. Id. at Q/A 142, 160-61. 

Flash and mold parting lines indicated that this material had been applied by a molding process. 

Id. 

The electronic components were attached to the PCB using a yellow tape wrapped around 

a black pad. Id. at Q/ A 14 7-48, 160-61. The yellow tape was a film similar to Kapton® with a 

silicone-based adhesive, and the black pad was silicone-based material with an adhesive on one 

side. Id. The adhesive on the black pad was an acrylate adhesive with non-woven cellulose 

fibers. Id. Two types of underfill were used on in UP and UP24 bands. Id. at QI A 149, 160-61. 

The first type was a hard, black coating consisted of an epoxy/acrylic material with silica filler, 

consistent with the composition of . Id. at Q/A 149-50, 160-61. The second 

type was a soft, clear coating consisted of polyurethane with evidence of acrylic compounds. Id. 

at Q/A 149, 160-61. 

Dr. Scott testified that he "readily understood that the purpose of the underfill and 

adhesive material was to insulate the electrical components from the injection molding processes 

that was performed on top of the electrical components." Id. at Q/A 194. Dr. Scott's testimony 

on this point is supported by Flextronics' s independent determination that after the electronic 

components were attached to the steel band of the UP band, they were "pot[ted]" in order "to 

protect them" from the overmolding process. RX-1618C-7, -9. 

Dr. Scott's analysis of the UP and UP24 bands took between 8 to 10 hours and required 

approximately 16 hours oflaboratory sessions and analysis. RX-1558C (Scott RWS) at Q/A 
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163-64. The results of Dr. Scott's abbreviated teardowns are fully consistent with the testimony 

of Complainants' expert witness. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 109 (admitting that The 

"proprietary process flow'.' is not a trade secret. 

Complainants challenge Dr. Scott's conclusions because he had a vendor (Analytical 

Answers, Inc.) perform the.FT-IR (Fourier-transform infrared spectroscopy) and SEM/EDXS 

(scanning electron microscopy and energy dispersive x-ray spectroscopy) analyses. CIB at 67-

68. Complainants do not explain why this is relevant. The services provided to Scott by 

Analytical Answers, Inc. are generally available to the public, including Jawbone's competitors. 

Tr. (Scott) at 1512:24-1513:7. 

B. Jawbone's selection of equipment and manufacturing parameters are not 
used to manufacture the accused Fitbit products. 

Complainants also allege that the alleged trade secrets include the specific equipment and 

parameters used to manufacture the UP and UP24 bands. The equipment and parameters used to 

manufacture the Jawbone products, however, are simply not used to manufacture the accused 

products. As discussed above, -is not applied to the accused products' electronic 

components and therefore the equipment and manufacturing parameters used to manufacture 

Jawbone's products would have no applicability to the Fitbit products. In her witness statement, 

the only evidence that Ms. Tulkoff identified in support of her opinion that alleged trade secret 

nos. 92 and 92-A were being used in the Fitbit manufacturing process was her belief that a 

was being used in the Fitbit process: 

Q: What evidence did you see of Jawbone's production methods 
trade secrets in Fitbit's products? 

A: Jawbone had to research and recommend specific 
manufacturing equipment to enable Flextronics to execute the 

with the desired precision and 
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Jaw bone researched, quoted, and recommended a 
which Flextronics Zhuhai then 

procured for the project. The was the subject 
of Quote RC2013071600B Jawbone China dated July 19, 2013, to 
Mr. Alex Lee of Jawbone. This - is still in use by 
Flextronics Zhuhai and is used for Fitbit wearables. 

CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS as originally submitted on March 30, 2016) at Q/A 181. 10 According 

to Ms. Tulkoff, the was the only "visible visual manifestation" of 

the alleged misappropriation "that could be visually seen in a process flow or a recipe." Tr. 

(Tulkoff) at 1197:19-1198:12. The Fitbit manufacturing process, however, does not use the 

, and Ms. Tulkoff retracted her testimony at the hearing. Tr. 

(Tulkoff) at 1160:17-1161:2 (withdrawing her response to Question No. 181 of her direct witness 

statement in its entirety). 

Moreover, because the Fitbit process uses different equipment than the Jawbone process, 

the settings and parameters disclosed in CX-0529C cannot be used in the Fitbit process. Tr. 

(Tulkoff) at 1214:12-17 (admitting that she was unable to cite evidence of the parameters being 

used to make the Fitbit products, because the "process parameters would have to be modified for 

the equipment that was actually in use"). In a footnote in their reply brief, Complainants argue 

that this portion of Ms. Tulkoff' s testimony is irrelevant, because she was testifying about 

alleged trade secret no. 91, which is no longer being asserted. CRB at 50 n. 12. 

The testimony, however, is clearly relevant. Complainants relied on CX-0529C's 

disclosure of equipment, material, and parameters to define alleged trade secret no. 91, as well as 

10 After the hearing, Complainants submitted a final version of CX-2895C redacting Question 
and Answer No. 181 in its entirety and indicating that it had been "withdrawn." 
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alleged trade secret nos. 92 and 92-A. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 117, 121. 11 In the 

cited testimony, Ms. Tulkoff was asked ifthere was any evidence of the parameters disclosed in 

CX-0529C being used in the manufacture of Fitbit products, and she responded that "the actual 

settings would be different," because "[t]he process parameters would have to be modified for 

the equipment that was actually in use at Flextronics." Tr. (Tulkoff) at 1214:12-17. Ms. Tulkoff 

has acknowledged that the Fitbit manufacturing process uses different equipment that the 

Foxlink process. Id. at 1197: 19-1198:12. Complainants do not explain why the same parameters 

that Ms. Tulkoff testified could not be used in the Fitbit process with respect to alleged trade 

secret no. 91, can be used in the Fitbit process with respect to alleged trade secret nos. 92 and 92-

A. 

Further, Complainants have not cited any evidence that the parameters disclosed in CX-

0529C are being used in the Fitbit process. In response to my questions at the hearing, Ms. 

Tulkoff confirmed that she saw no evidence of "Jawbone parameters" being used in the Fitbit 

process. Tr. (Tulkoff) at 1245:3-13. 

C. There is no evidence showing that Flextronics had access to the information 
comprising the alleged trade secrets. 

Complainants rely on CX-0529C to identify the equipment and manufacturing parameters 

comprising the alleged trade secrets. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 102; 110. This is the 

only document identified by Complainants as disclosing the equipment and parameters used in 

Jawbone's manufacturing process. As discussed below, it is undisputed that Flextronics was not 

11 The second paragraph of Ms. Tulkoffs three-paragraph response to question number 121 is 
numbered "122." CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 121. 
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given CX-0529C and there is no evidence that Flextronics would have received the information 

contained in CX-0529C through other documents or from Jawbone employees. 

1. CX-0529C is the only document identified by Complainants as 
disclosing the equipment and manufacturing parameters used to 
manufacture the UP and UP24 bands. 

Although Complainants argue that CX-0529C is but an "exemplary document" and that 

"Jawbone's trade secret also includes the documents that Jawbone provided to Flextronics 

concerning the Jawbone UP product, as well as the knowledge transfer provided by the 

approximately 30 employees of Jawbone who worked side by side with Flextronics personnel at 

Flextronics's Zhuhai facility," Complainants fail to identify these other documents or this 

knowledge transfer with any specificity. CIB at 58 n. 6. 

In support of their argument, Complainants cite CX-1665C and the testimony of Ms. 

Tulkoff and Mr. Drysdale. CIB at 58. CX-1665C is a spreadsheet listing Jawbone documents to 

which Flextronics had access. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 45; CX-2888C (Drysdale 

DWS) at Q/A 32. In the portions of Ms. Tulkoffs testimony cited by Complainants, Ms. Tulkoff 

testified that the "files listed on [CX-1665C] would contain some of the confidential information 

such as engineering drawings, process documents, etc., that I discussed in my previous answer." 

CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 45-46. CX-1665C has over 11,000 entries. The only 

document Tulkoff discusses that is listed in CX-1655C is CX-1649C, which she described as 

containing "highly confidential technical information." Id. Ms. Tulkoff, however, did not opine 

whether that "highly confidential technical information" relates to the alleged trade secrets. Id. 

Relying on statements from Mr. Drysdale, Ms. Tulkoff also testified that the 30 Jawbone 

employees who went to Flextronics's Zhuhai facility to assist Flextronics "were in effect 'living 

documents' as a result of their experience setting up the process with Foxlink, and the knowledge 

64 



PUBLIC VERSION 

transferred by these employees was invaluable." Id. at Q/A 65. Ms. Tulkoff, however, neither 

described the "invaluable" knowledge transferred by these "living documents" nor explained 

how that knowledge was related to the alleged trade secrets. Id. 

In the portion of his testimony cited by Complainants, Mr. Drysdale testified that 

Jawbone gave Flextronics the "full document package" and "sent a number of our people over to 

Zhuhai to work side-by-side with Flextronics on the factory floor." CX-2888C (Drysdale DWS) 

at Q/A 31-33. Mr. Drysdale did not link specific information contained in the "full document 

package" or conveyed by the Jawbone employees to the alleged trade secrets. 

In addition, a significant portion of the information in the documents to which Flextronics 

had access as well as the information conveyed by the 30 Jawbone employees sent to work with 

Flextronics appears to be unrelated to the alleged trade secrets. While Complainants claim that 

the alleged trade secrets relate to the manufacturing steps for the UP and UP24 bands, the 

documents listed in CX-1665C include documents relating to the UP2 and UP3 bands, 

Jawbone's , audio products, and a . CX-2888C 

(Drysdale DWS) at Q/A 32. Similarly, the Jawbone employees sent to work with Flextronics 

were not limited to only those persons knowledgeable about the manufacturing processes 

constituting the alleged trade secrets. They "covered all disciplines and included mechanical 

engineers, tooling engineers, program management, IT, materials, and reliability/quality 

assurance personnel." Id. at Q/A 34. 

Rather than identify the specific documents and information describing the alleged trade 

secrets, Complainants point to a large mass of information-much of which is irrelevant-and 

ask that it be assumed that the alleged trade secrets are somewhere within. Defining the trade 

secret at issue, however, is Complainants' burden. Restatement§ 39 cmt. d ("A person claiming 
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rights in a trade secret bears the burden of defining the information for which protection is 

sought with sufficient definiteness to permit a court to apply the criteria for protection described 

in this Section and to determine the fact of an appropriation."); MAI Systems Corp. v. Peak 

Computer, Inc., 991F.2d511 522-23 (9th Cir. 1993) ("Since the trade secrets are not specifically 

identified, we cannot determine whether Peak has misappropriated any trade secrets by running 

the MAI operating software and/or diagnostic software in maintaining MAI systems for its 

customers .... ")(applying California law). The only document identified by Complainants' 

witnesses as describing the alleged trade secrets is CX-0529C. Accordingly, my analysis of the 

alleged trade secrets will be confined to CX-0529C. 

a. Complainants have not shown that Flextronics had access to 
CX-0529C and the information contained therein. 

CX-0529C discloses equipment and manufacturing parameters for the process steps used 

by Foxlink, not Flextronics, to manufacture the UP and UP24.bands. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) 

at Q/ A 117 ("Yes, this internal Jawbone document [(CX-529C)] details the process flow, 

material, tools, and recipe settings which were in place at Foxlink to manufacture the UP."). 

There is no dispute that Flextronics did not receive CX-0529C. Tr. (Tulkoff) at 1211 :8-21 

("Flextronics did not get this document, no."). 

Moreover, it cannot be assumed that the information disclosed in CX-0529C was 

transmitted to Flextronics through other Jawbone documents or by Jawbone employees. Mr. 

Winters testified that Jawbone "did not have and did not deliver to Flextronics the kind of 

detailed documentation it would have needed to copy the Foxlink process,'' and that Flextronics 

had to develop a new manufacturing process to make the UP band. RX-2001 C (Winters RWS) 

at Q/ A 9-10. Consistent with this testimony is that Flextronics, in conjunction with Jawbone, 
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had to reverse engineer a UP band in order to develop a manufacturing process for the UP band. 

RX-1941 (Winters DWS) at Q/A 30. In reverse engineering the UP band, Flextronics was not 

merely seeking to replicate the Foxlink processes, but was seeking to "find better ways to 

assemble its UP product and optimize the manufacturing process alter[]" and "improve[]" the 

Foxlink processes. RX-2001C (Winters.RWS) at Q/A 12; see also CX-2888C (Drydale DWS) at 

QIA 30 (" 

Tr. (Winters) at 1442:5-16, 1445:8-19. 

Complainants' own expert admitted that she would not expect Flextronics to use the same 

process used by Foxlink. CX-2895C (Tulkoff DWS) at Q/A 33 ("I should note that different 

manufacturers have different capabilities, so no processes will be exactly the same between two 

different CMs."). Nor have Complainants attempted to establish that the process flow developed 

by Flextronics in conjunction with Jawbone uses the equipment and settings recited in the CX-

0529C. 

In short, Complainants have failed to show that Flextronics had access to the information 

concerning the settings and equipment set forth in CX-0529C. Accordingly, Complainants have 

failed to show that they "disclosed the trade secret to respondent while in a confidential 

relationship or that the respondent wrongfully took the trade secret by unfair means." Copper 

Rod, 1979 WL 4457810529C, at *19; see also Crawler Cranes at 34. 

2. There is no circumstantial evidence that Jawbone information was 
used to accelerate development of Fitbit's manufacturing process. 

Even after their expert conceded that the Fitbit manufacturing process did not incorporate 

equipment and manufacturing parameters from Jawbone's processes in any "visible" way, Tr. 

Tulkoff) at 1197:12-1198:25, Complainants argue that the information was used "to accelerate· .. 
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the development, avoid problems, [and] to speed up development" of the Fitbit products. Id. 

There is no evidence of Jawbone's information being so used. When asked to identify instances 

where Fitbit product's development was "actually accelerated" through the use of Jawbone's 

trade secret information, Complainants' expert admitted that she was unaware of any "actual 

time savings specific to a product." Id. at 1255:25-1256:20. 

Despite the testimony of their expert, Complainants argue that there is "strong 

circumstantial evidence that Flextronics used Jawbone's trade secrets for Fitbit." CIB at 105. In 

making this argument Complainants allege that Flextronics failed to segregate the staffing of the 

Jawbone project from that of the Fitbit project and that Flextronics's employees mishandled 

Jawbone's information. These allegations are irrelevant because Complainants fail to tie them to 

any actual use of Jawbone information. 

Complainants argue that Flextronics breached an agreement 

Complainants fail to identify any misuse of Jawbone information. It cannot be assumed that 

because a former employee has been retained by a competitor that the former employee has 

improperly used or disclosed his or her former employer's confidential information. Litton Sys. 

Inc. v. Sundstrand Corp. Eyeglasses, 750 F.2d 952, 957 (Fed. Cir. 1984). 12 Similarly, it would 

12 For the reasons above, without evidence that information was misappropriated, whether 
Flextronics agreed to is irrelevant. To the extent that the Commission deems 
it to be relevant, however, I find that Complainants failed to meet their burden of establishing its 
existence. The only fact witness asserting that Jawbone and Flextronics agreed to -
- is unable to recount the . CX-2888C (Drysdale 
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be improper to assume without evidence that Flextronics employees, who were reassigned from a 

Jawbone project, used Jawbone's confidential information to assist Fitbit. 

The only employee cross-staffed between Jawbone and Fitbit projects who Complainants 

allege disclosed Jawbone information to aid Fitbit is Harry Wind. Complainants cite two emails 

from Mr. Wind in which Mr. Wind "drew on his experience from Jawbone to provide input on 

Fitbit technical issues." CIB at 103. Mr. Wind's "experience" is riot a Jawbone trade secret, 

even if his experience was gained on a Jawbone project. See, e.g., Restatement§ 42 cmt. d 

("Information that forms the general skill, knowledge, training, and experience of an employee 

cannot be claimed as a trade secret by a former employer even when the information is directly 

attributable to an investment ofresources by the employer in the employee."); AMP Inc. v. 

Fleischhacker, 823 F.2d 1199, 1202 (7th Cir.1987) ("One who has worked in a particular field 

cannot be compelled to erase from his mind all of the general skills, knowledge and expertise 

acquired through his experience.") (applying Illinois law) (internal citation and quotation marks 

omitted), superceded by statute as stated in Pepsico, Inc. v. Redmond, 54 F.3d 1262, 1268 (7th 

Cir. 1995) (noting that the statute codifying common law trade secret law does not "represent a 

major deviation from the Illinois common law of unfair trade practices"). In both instances, Mr. 

Wind was merely providing his general opinion regarding non-trade secret information. JX-

021 lC.0001 (recommending against using ); JX-0210C.0001 (recommending 

using-). Moreover, there is no evidence that the advice contained in these two 

emails aided the Fitbit project in any way. 

DWS) at Q/A 39. There is no Jawbone or Flextronics document indicating 
I find it highly unlikely that Flextronics would have 
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Complainants also point to a number of alleged breaches regarding the handling of 

Jawbone information by Flextronics employees. CIB at 96-100. Complainants, however, fail to 

tie the information allegedly mishandled to the alleged trade secrets and fail to allege that the 

information was used to aid Fitbit. 

Similarly, Complainants' allege that Flextronics breached its agreement -

. Because Complainants fail to 

demonstrate that the alleged concurrent cross-staffing led to a misappropriation of Jawbone 

information, these allegations are irrelevant. Moreover, there is no evidence that Flextronics 

improperly staffed employees on Jawbone and Fitbit projects at the same time. 

Complainants allege that two Flextronics employees were concurrently assigned to both 

Jawbone and Fitbit projects, Mr; Wind and C.T. Toh. With regard to Mr. Wind, his curriculum 

vitae indicates that he was not concurrently cross-staffed on Jawbone and Fitbit projects. JX-

0206C.0001. The only evidence that Complainants cite is an email from Tom 

Chen. 

JX-0206C.0001. Mr. Chen's email is not inconsistent with Mr. Wind being 

recently reassigned from the Jawbone project to the Fitbit project. 
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Finally, Complainants allege that "Flextronics employees used Jawbone confidential data 

for purposes which did not benefit Jawbone." CIB at 101. 

--- -----------------
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VII. Testing Trade Secret (Alleged Trade Secret No. 129) 

As with alleged secret nos. 92 and 92-A, Complainants allege that Flextronics gained 

access to alleged trade secret no. 129 and used it to aid testing of the accused products. As with 

alleged trade secret nos. 92 and 92-A, Complainants have no evidence that the information 

comprising alleged trade secret no. 129 was misappropriated. Moreover, their theory of how 

such a misappropriation may have occurred is highly speculative. 

Complainants assert that "Jawbone's specific tests, testing equipment and pass/fail 

criteria for manufacturing quality control of [Jawbone's] UP and UP24 products constitute a 

trade secret." CIB at 63. According to Complainants, "[t]he testing was created specifically by 

Jawbone to manufacture a robust, reliable product. Jawbone requires that its UP and UP24 

products 

." Id. at 63-64. 

A. There is no evidence that Flextronics used alleged trade secret no. 129 to 
benefit Fitbit. 

Flextronics tested the Fitbit and Jawbone products in the same laboratory. RX-1991 C 

(Zebe RWS) Q/A 86. Complainants speculate that because the testing was performed in the 

same laboratory "[l]ab staff could readily see the differences between Jawbone's proprietary 
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tests and tests being conducted for Fitbit products and could make recommendations on how to 

improve testing protocols to their other customers based on what they saw on Jawbone's 

project." CIB at 102. Such speculation is not evidence. 

Fitbit not Jawbone provided Flextronics with the testing procedures for Fitbit's products. 

CIB at 102 ("Each customer provided test procedures .... "); RX-1991C (Zebe RWS) Q/A 84. 

There is no evidence that Fitbit had access to Jawbone's testing procedures. Accordingly, Fitbit 

could not have used Jawbone's testing protocol to develop its testing procedures for its devices. 

Rather Complainants allege that "Flextronics would sometimes request changes to those tests" 

and that "[t]his indicates that potentially valuable information, such as shortening the duration of 

a test, could be transferred to other customers." CIB at 102. Complainants do not identify any 

changes or any instances of Flextronics recommending changes to Fitbit's testing procedures 

stemming from misuse of Jawbone information. 

B. Complainants' theory of how an alleged misappropriation may have 
occurred is highly speculative. 

Complainants' speculation that because Jawbone and Fitbit products were tested in the 

same facility "[l]ab staff could readily see the differences between Jawbone's proprietary tests 

and tests being conducted for Fitbit products and could make recommendations on how to 

improve testing protocols to their other customers based on what they saw on Jawbone's 

project," is based on a faulty premise. CIB at 102. The only document identified by 

Complainants' witnesses as reciting the testing procedures comprising alleged trade secret no. 

129 is JX-0052C. CX-2895C (TulkoffDWS) at Q/A 123-127; CX-2895C (Tulkoff DWS) at 

QIA 124. JX-0052C is the" ." CX-2895C at Q/A 124. 

Flextronics never tested , however, and Complainants only allege that Flextronics 
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may have seen this document when providing a quote for the project. CX-2888C (Drysdale 

DWS) at Q/A 18. The product that Flextronics tested was-. 

Although it is thus undisputed that Flextronics never implemented the testing plan 

described in JX-0052, Complainants attempt to get around this by arguing that JX-0052C is an 

"exemplary document." CIB at 64. It is Complainants' burden to define the trade secret at issue. 

Restatement§ 39 cmt. d; MAI, -991 F.2d at 522-23. As discussed above with respect to CX-

0529C and alleged trade secrets nos. 92 and 92-A, Complainants cannot simply point to a large 

mass of information and ask that it be assumed that the alleged tra,de secret is somewhere within. 

The only document identified by Complainants' witnesses as describing the alleged trade secret 

is JX-0052C. Although Complainants identify a document listed in CX-1665C that relates to. 

, this document does not appear to be in evidence. CIB at 64. 

For the foregoing reasons, I find that Complainants have not shown that Flextronics used or 

disclosed alleged trade secret no. 129 with respect to the accused Fitbit Products. 

VIII. Domestic Industry 

A. Applicable Law 

Unfair practices in import trade are unlawful if the "threat or effect" is, inter alia, "to 

destroy or substantially injure an industry in the United States." 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(l)(A)(i). A 

complainant must establish a causal relationship between the unfair acts and the injury. Certain 

Ink Markers, Inv. No. 337-TA-522, Non-Final Initial Dermination, 2005 WL 2866049, at *27 

(Jul. 25, 2005) (citations omitted), unreviewed Comm'n Notice (Sep. 8, 2005). The required 

showing can be made in a variety of ways, and the injury requirement also can be met by a 

showing of probable future injury. Id. However, the future injury cannot be speculative and 

must be "substantive and clearly foreseen." Certain Digital Multimeters, Inv. No. 337-TA-588 
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Initial Determination, 2010 WL 5642165, at *33 (Jan. 14, 2008) ("Digital Multimeters"). 

("Additionally, the threatened injury must be 'substantive and clearly foreseen' and the 

complainant must show a causal connection between the respondent's unfair act and the alleged 

future injury."), unreviewed Comm'n Notice, 2010 WL 5642165, at *18-21 (Feb. 12, 2008). 

B. Existence of Domestic Industry 

In order to prove the existence of a domestic industry, Complainants rely on Jawbone's 

· domestic investments in research and development and engineering that were presented through 

the direct witness statement of Dr. Kenneth Button (CX-3027C). CIB at 107-08. Neither Staff 

nor Respondents dispute that Complainants have an industry in the United States in the 

development of wearable activity trackers. 

C. Substantial Threat of Future Injury 

Jawbone's injury claims are based on the substantial threat of future injury. See CRB at 

31-34; 43-44; 61-63. 13 Relying on the expert testimony of Dr. Neels, Complainants contend that 

the alleged misappropriation of trade secrets provided Fitbit with significant cost and time 

advantages, which gives Fitbit a cost advantage over Jawbone. CIB at 111-116. According to 

Dr. Neels, these advantages threaten injury to Jawbone because the two companies are 

competitors in the market for wearable activity trackers. CX.:.2898C (Neels DWS) at Q/A 79. 

Dr. Neels describes a "self-reinforcing cycle" that would benefit Fitbit at the expense of 

Jawbone, causing lost sales that would degrade Jawbone's ability to fund its investments in 

13 Complainants' initial post-hearing brief states that "Respondents' unfair acts have caused and 
threaten to cause substantial injury," but Jawbone does not cite any present or past injury. CIB at 
106. Complainants' expert did not rely on any actual decline in Jawbone's research and 
development investments as a basis for his opinion on injury. Tr. (Neels) at 1026:14-1027:7; 
CIB at 115-16. 
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research and development. Id. Jawbone argues that the wearable activity tracking market is an 

emerging industry, which magnifies the threat of injury. CIB at 108-111. Complainants further 

argue that the there is a low threshold for injury under section 337. CIB at 106-07. 

Respondents argue that Jawbone has failed to carry its burden to show that the alleged 

threat of injury is "substantial." RIB at 60-63. Staff agrees with Respondents that Jawbone's 

evidence falls short of the requirements to show a threat of substantial injury. SIB at 31-33. 

Dr. Neels admitted at the hearing that he did not assess the injury to Jawbone in quantitative 

terms. Tr. (Neels) at 1005:22-1007:20, 1014:2-9 ("My understanding was that in an ITC 

proceeding, one needs to establish the fact of injury, not to establish its measure. So I didn't 

establish its measure."). He did, however, opine that the injury was "substantial" because Fitbit 

and Jawbone were in direct competition in a market with a small number of products, and he 

understood that the alleged trade secrets were valuable. Id. at 1006:17-1007:20. 

Recognizing that Dr. Neels provides little substantiation for the degree of injury, 

Complainants cite several cases where the Commission has found a low threshold for substantial 

injury under section 337. CIB at 107; CRB at 32-33. In these cases, however, the connection 

between the alleged unfair act and the domestic industry was more direct than it is here. In a 

typical section 337 investigation, the asserted intellectual property right is embodied in 

infringing products that are competing against domestic industry products, and the Commission 

has applied a liberal test for injury: "Where the unfair practice is the importation of products that 

infringe a domestic industry's ... patent right, even a relatively small loss of sales may establish, 

under section 337(a), the requisite injury .... " Bally/Midway Mfg. Co. v. US. Int'! Trade 
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Comm'n, 714 F.2d 1117, 1124 (Fed.Cir.1983). 14 In this case, however, Complainants' case for 

injury is not based on a straightforward argument that the importation of infringing products will 

cause a loss of sales for domestic industry products. Complainants rely on a series of inferences 

to prove injury: (1) The alleged trade secrets provide "cost and time avoidance" for Fitbit that 

allows products to be released earlier than expected; (2) the earlier release and lower cost of 

Fitbit products will impact the sales of Jawbone products; and (3) the lower sales of Jawbone 

products will injure Jawbone's domestic investments in research and development. 15 Although 

Complainants offer conclusory expert testimony to support their arguments, there is no reliable 

evidence to support these inferences or to connect them to each other. 

Dr. Neels alleges that the misappropriation of Jawbone's trade secrets provide cost and 

time advantages to Fitbit, but there is no way to determine whether these alleged advantages will 

impact sales of Jawbone's products, because he fails to quantify these advantages. CX-2898C at 

QI A 79-84. Dr. N eels merely alleges that "Fitbit' s use of this information could result in price 

erosion and could increase sales of Fitbit's products while decreasing sales of Jawbone's 

products." CX-2898C at Q/A 79 (emphasis added). This falls far short of the evidence 

14 Prior to the 1988 amendments to Section 337, an injury requirement applied to all violations of 
Section 337, including patent infringement. See TianRui, 661 F.3d at 1335-37 (discussing 1988 
amendments to Section 337). The amendment also changed the statutory language from "effect 
or tendency" to "threat or effect," but this was intended to codify the existing Commission 
practice without changing the standard for proving injury. H.R.Rep. No. 100-576 at 633 (Apr. 
20, 1988) (reprinted in 1988 U.S.C.A.N. 1547). 

15 Complainants do not rely on the traditional indicia for determining whether a threat to 
substantially injure exists, which are predicated on a domestic industry based on manufacturing: 
(1) substantial foreign manufacturing capacity; (2) ability of imported product to undersell the 
domestic product; (3) explicit intention to enter into'the U.S. market; (4) the inability of the 
domestic industry to compete with the foreign products because of vastly lower foreign costs of 
production and lower prices; and (5) the significant negative impact this would have on the 
domestic industry. Rubber Resins, 2014 WL 7497801, at *32. 
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considered in prior Commission decisions cited by Jawbone, where the complainants at least 

presented actual evidence regarding pricing, volume of imports, or lost sales. See Certain 

Surveying Devices, Inv. No. 337-TA-68, Comm'n Op., 0080 WL 594364, at *15-17 (Jul. 7, 

1980) (finding injury to a domestic industry in the production of surveying products where there 

was a declining rate of sales and the complainant identified specific customers that had been lost 

to the respondent); Certain Feathered Fur Coats, Initial Determination, 0088 WL 1572173, at 

*7-9, *13-14 (May 1988) (excluding the foreign production of fur coats from the domestic 

industry and finding a tendency to injure based on "[ s ]ubstantial foreign cost advantages, 

underselling, production capacity, and demonstrated potential and intention to penetrate the 

United States market"); Certain Minoxidil Powder, Inv. No. 337-TA-267, Initial Determination, 

1988 WL 582867, at *30 (Feb. 16, 1988) (finding "aprimafacie showing of capacity, intent, and 

ability to penetrate the domestic market on the part of the respondents and others, with 

predictably injurious effect upon the domestic industry"); Copper Rod, 1979 WL 445781, *at 30 

(1979) ("The evidence presented demonstrates the amount of profits and employment that were 

lost by Southwire due to the importation of the two Krupp systems."). 

In Dr. Neels's witness statement, he identifies the retail prices for several Jawbone and 

Fitbit products, but he does not explain how any of these products compete with each other or 

how the sales of any specific Jawbone product are affected by the sales of any Fitbit product. 

CX-2898C at QI A 43-70. Dr. Neels provides no opinion on how the pricing of any Fitbit 

product has been affected by the alleged misappropriation of any trade secret, or whether the 

release of any Fitbit product was accelerated because of the misappropriation of any trade secret. 

Id. He only speculates that this "could" happen and it "could" affect sales of Jawbone products. 

CX-2898C at Q/A 79. 
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In their reply brief, Complainants cite the Initial Determination in Certain Optical 

Waveguide Fibers, but in that investigation the administrative law judge found no tendency to 

substantially injure the domestic industry because the forecast for future importation of accused 

products was low, and "[a]ny further attempt to quantify such imports would be mere 

speculation." Inv. No. 337-TA-189 ("Waveguide Fibers"), Initial Determination, 1985 WL 

303606, at *55 (Jan. 22, 1985). This finding was affirmed by the Commission, which cited the 

Federal Circuit precedent in Textron: 16 "Textron permits a lower quantum of proof for showing 

substantial injury or tendency to substantially injure in intellectual-property-based section 337 

cases; it does not, however, permit speculation." Waveguide Fibers, Cornrn'n Op., 1985 WL 

303610, at *9 (Apr. 19, 1985), aff'd sub nom. Corning Glass Works v. US Int'! Trade Comm 'n, 

799 F.2d 1559 (Fed. Cir. 1986). Dr. Neels fails to provide any concrete projections regarding 

Fitbit's sales or Jawbone's lost sales, and any opinion regarding future injury is thus merely 
. . 

speculation. 

Compounding Complainants' failure to tie Fitbit's alleged trade secret misappropriation 

to any decline in the sale of Jawbone's products, there is no evidence connecting Jawbone's sales 

to the alleged domestic industry in research and development. 

. Tr. at 677:18-22. Without some quantification of the effects of the 

16 In Textron, the Federal Circuit acknowledged that "the quantum of proof of injury is less in the 
context of patent; trademark, or copyright infringement," but nevertheless upheld a finding of no 
injury where the Commission found that the unfair acts "did not result in a substantial loss of 
sales." 753 F.2d at 1028-29. 
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alleged trade secret misappropriation, it is impossible to make the series of inferences necessary 

to determine whether there is any foreseeable impact on Jawbone's research and development 

expenditures. 

An additional problem with Jawbone's evidence of injury is that Dr. Neels addressed all 

38 trade secrets from the hearing collectively, breaking them down only into broad categories of 

"technoiogical information," "manufacturing information," and "consumer research 

information." CX-2898C at Q/A 81-83. On cross-examination, he admitted that his "focus was 

on the entire set of trade secrets." Tr. at 1008:7-15. Dr. Neels specifically admitted that he had 

no specific opinion on the extent of injury that could be attributed to an individual trade secret. 

Tr. at 1009:4-1010:6. As discussed above, there has been no misappropriation of any trade 

secret, but even if Jawbone had proven misappropriation of the five asserted trade secrets, there 

is no way .to decide on this record what specific injury is attributable to these trade secrets, and 

whether the injury is substantial. 

Accordingly, even ifthere were misappropriation of any trade secret, there is no violation 

of section 337 because Jawbone has failed to prove a threat of substantial injury to a domestic 

industry. 

IX. Remedy & Bonding 

A. Limited Exclusion Order 

Complainants seek a limited exclusion order covering Respondents' products that use or 

benefit from the alleged trade secrets. CIB at 116-118. The Commission has generally applied a 

rule that the duration of an exclusion order is "the time it would have taken to independently 

develop the trade secrets." Rubber Resins, 2014 WL 7497801, at *43. Complainants do not 

advocate for a strict application of this rule, however, contending that the asserted trade secrets 
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would take three to six years to develop but seeking an exclusion order of only one or two years 

as a "compromise." CIB at 117-118. 

Alleged trade secret no. 98: The only trade secret that Jawbone alleges to be used in an 

accused product is trade secret, and any exclusion order for the accused Laryon 

product should be based on the development time for this trade secret. Complainants argue that 

it would require four and half years for Respondents to independently develop 

trade secret. CIB at 117 (citing CX-2896C (Jafari DWS) at Q/A 103). Fitbit contends that the 

proper timeframe is a few weeks, corresponding to the length of time it took Amphenol to design 

for the Laryonprototype. RIB at 77 (citing RX-1547C (Bowen WS) at Q/A 

100-104; RX-2089C at 1-8). Complainants' position is unsupported by any evidence. Dr. Jafari 

estimated an independent development time of 4.5 years for a group of trade secrets related to 

the UP, UP24, UP2, UP3, and UP4. CX-2896C (Jafari DWS) at Q/A 103. None of these 

products, however, uses , and Jawbone cites no evidence supporting a timeframe 

specific to the development of alleged trade secret no. 98. Complainants argue that the 

timeframe for a third-party's design of does not reflect the development time for 

trade secret no. 98, but this is the only reliable evidence in the record regarding the time required 

for the development of antenna technology. Accordingly, if the Commission finds a violation 

based on misappropriation of trade secret no. 98, I recommend a limited exclusion order of one 

month for the Laryon product. 

Alleged trade secret no. 128: Complainants allege that it would take six years to 

independently develop its trade secret regarding vendor contacts. CIB at 117-118. Respondents 

argue that it would only take a few hours to compile this information. RIB at 76; RRB at 66-68. 

The time for independent development is irrelevant regarding this trade secret, because Fitbit did 
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not actually use any of these vendors for any accused product. Even if it were true that Jawbone 

took several years to gain experience working with the vendors identified in Ms. Weiden's 

emails, it would be unfair to exclude products based on this timeframe when none of those 

vendors were used iii the design or manufacture of the excluded products. In this circumstance, 

the more appropriate duration for an exclusion order would be the time advantage that Fitbit 

gained as a result of the alleged trade secret misappropriation. 17 As discussed above, however, 

Jawbone provided no quantification for this time advantage and Jawbone's expert on injury 

failed to provide a separate discussion of trade secret no. 128. See CX-2898C (Neels DWS) at 

QIA 79. Fitbit's contention that it would take only take a few hours to search the internet for 

vendor information is a more reliable estimate of the actual time advantage that Fitbit gained 

from the vendor information that Jawbone alleges was misappropriated, because Ms. Weiden 

may have saved a few hours by relying on the information in her emails rather than searching for 

publicly available vendors. Given the trivial impact of excluding products for a few hours, I 

recommend no exclusion order if the Commission finds a violation based only upon 

misappropriation of trade secret no. 128. 

Alleged trade secret nos. 92, 92-A, and 129: Relying on the testimony of Ms. Tulkoff, 

Complainants allege that it would take three years to independently develop alleged trade secret 

17 This would be consistent with the Commission's approach in Certain Processes for the 
Manufacture of Skinless Sausage Casings and Resulting Product, where the duration of an 
exclusion order was determined by considering the impact of the trade secrets on "the entire 
machine, system, or set of standards." Inv. No. 337-TA-148/169, Comm'n Op. at 19, USITC 
Pub. No. 1624, 1984 WL 273326, *11(Dec.1984), aff'd by Visco/an, SA. v. US. Int'! Trade 
Comm 'n, 787 F.2d 544, 550 (Fed. Cir. 1986) ("The Commission concluded that in the 
circumstances of this case the basis for determining the development time was the time it would 
have taken Viscofan to create the manufacturing processes involving the misappropriated trade 
secrets and not, as Viscofan urged, the time it would have required Viscofan to discover each 
particular trade secret independently and without regard to the total process."). 
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·nos. 92 and 129, and five years to develop alleged trade secret no. 92-A. CX-2895C (Tulkoff 

DWS) at Q/A 131-132. Respondents offer rebuttal testimony from Dr. Scott explaining that 

alleged trade secret nos. 92 and 92-A could be independently developed in three to five months. 

RX-1558C (Scott RWS) at Q/A 170. Dr. Paradiso testified that alleged trade secret no. 129 

could be independently developed in one to two weeks. RX-1557C (Paradiso WS) at Q/A 148. 

As discussed above, an independent development time is not the appropriate duration for an 

exclusion order'with respect to these trade secrets because the products that Jawbone seeks to 

exclude are not alleged to have been manufactured or tested using any of these trade secrets. The 

duration of an exclusion order should be limited to the time advantage that Respondents gained 

as a result of the alleged trade secret misappropriation. As with alleged trade secret no. 128, 

Jawbone has not specified the length of any alleged time advantage, although that is the basis for 

its claim of injury. See CX-2898C (Neels DWS) at Q/A 79-84. As discussed in the substantive 

'discussion of these trade secrets, supra, the only evidence that Jawbone's alleged trade secrets 

may have impacted the manufacture of a Fitbit product are internal discussions and suggestions 

regarding manufacturing techniques that were not actually used to make any Fitbit product. To 

the extent that this resulted in any time savings in the manufacturing of those products, the 

benefit is likely on the order of a few weeks, consistent with Dr. Paradiso's testimony about the 

timeframe for developing testing parameters. See RX-1557C (Paradiso RWS) at Q/A 148. If the 

Con:mission finds a violation based on misappropriation of trade secret nos. 92, 92-A, or 129, I 

recommend a limited exclusion order of no more than two weeks for any products found to have 

benefited from the misappropriation. 
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B. Cease and Desist Order 

The Commission may, in lieu of or in addition to an exclusion order, issue a cease and 

desist order directing persons found to have violated section 337 "to cease and desist from 

engaging in the unfair methods or acts involved." 19 U.S.C. § 1337(£)(1). Cease and desist 

orders "are generally issued when there is a 'commercially significant' amount of infringing, 

imported product in the United States that could be sold by an infringing respondent thereby 

resulting in evasion of the remedy provided by the exclusion order." Certain Optoelectronic 

Devices for Fiber Optic Commc'ns, Inv. No. 337-TA-860, Comm'n Op. ("Optoelectronic 

Devices") at 36 (May 9, 2014). 

Jawbone and Fitbit entered into stipulations regarding Fitbit's importation and inventory 

of products, and Fitbit does not dispute that this inventory is significant for its commercial 

products. Stipulation of Material Facts Relating to Importation and Inventory (Feb. 4, 2016), Ex. 

A (inventories of Fitbit Surge, Charge, and Charge HR); Stipulation of Material Facts Relating to 

Importation and Inventory (May 3, 2016), Ex. A (inventory of Fitbit Blaze); RRB at 72. With 

respect to trade secret nos. 98 and 128, the only accused product is a prototype, and there is no 

significant inventory. Stipulation of Material Facts Relating to Importation and Inventory (May 

3, 2016). If the Commission finds a violation based on trade secret nos. 92, 92-A, or 129, a 

cease and desist order would be appropriate, and I recommend that the duration of such an order 

be the same as that of any exclusion order. 

C. Bonding 

If the Commission decides to enter remedial orders, the affected articles still are entitled 

to entry under bond during the 60-day Presidential review period. 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j)(3). 

Commission Rule 210.50(a)(3) specifies that the amount of a bond must be "sufficient to protect 
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the complainant from any injury." 19 C.F.R. § 210.50(a)(3). The Commission has set the bond 

based on the price difference between the infringing imports and the domestic industry products 

or on a reasonable royalty the respondent would otherwise pay to the complainant. See Certain 

Inkjet Ink Supplies, Inv. No. 337-TA-691, Comm'n Op., 2011 WL 7464367, at *16 (Nov. 1, 

2011). "Where there is neither information on the price of the subject merchandise nor 

information which would allow one to determine a reasonable royalty, the Commission has set 

the bond at 100% of the entered value of the imported infringing products." Id. 

Complainants argue for a 100% bond because the competing Jawbone and Fitbit products 

at issue are multi-attribute differentiated products, and a price comparison is impractical. CIB at 

122. Respondents and Staff maintain that no bond should be required, becaus.e Complainants 

have failed to show the need for a bond. RIB at 79-80; SIB at 72-73. I agree that Complainants 

have not made the necessary showing that a bond would be needed in these circumstances, and I 

therefore recommend that none be imposed. See Certain Rubber Antidegradants, Inv. No. 337-

TA-533, Comm'n Op., 2008 WL 1727623, at *25 (Apr. 1, 2008) (noting that "the complainant 

has the burden "of supporting any proposition it advances, including the amount of the bond."), 

vacated in part on other grounds sub nom. Sinorgchem Co. v. Int'! Trade Comm 'n, 511 F.3d 

1132 (Fed. Cir. 2007). Complainants have not demonstrated that a price comparison is 

impossible. The record evidence shows that Fitbit's pricing is generally greater than or equal to 

Jawbone's. RX-1943C (Mody RWS) at Q/A 91, see also CX-2898C (Neels DWS) at Q/A 43-

70. In these circumstances, there is no danger that Jawbone will be injured by the sale of Fitbit 

products during the 60-day Presidential review period, and thus no bond is necessary. 
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X. INITIAL DETERMINATION 

Based on the foregoing, and the record as a whole, it is my Final Initial Determination 

that there is no violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, 

in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and/or the sale within the 

United States after importation of certain activity tracking devices, systems, and components 

thereof. I hereby certify the record in this Investigation to the Commission with my Final Initial 

Determination. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.38, the record further comprises the 

Complaint and exhibits thereto filed with the Secretary, the Markman order, and the exhibits 

attached to Complainants' summary determination motion and the Staffs response thereto. 19 

C.F.R. § 210.38(a). 

Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.42(c), this Initial Determination shall become the 

determination of the Commission 45 days after the service thereof, unless a party files a petition 

for review pursuant to Commission Rule 210.43(a), the Commission orders its own review 

pursuant to Commission Rule 210.44, or the Commission changes the effective date of the initial 

determination. 19 C.F.R. § 210.42(h)(6). 

Within ten (10) days of the date of this Initial Determination, each party shall submit to 

the Administrative Law Judge a statement as to whether or not it seeks to have any portion of 

this document deleted from the public version. See 19 C.F.R. § 210.5(f). A party seeking to 

have a portion of the order deleted from the public version thereof must attach to its submission a 

copy of the order with red brackets indicating the portion(s) asserted to contain confidential 

business information. 18 The parties' submissions under this subsection need not be filed with the 

18 To avoid depriving the public of the basis for understanding the result and reasoning 
underlying the decision, redactions should be limited. Parties who submit excessive redactions 
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Commission Secretary but shall be submitted by paper copy to the Administrative Law Judge 

and by e-mail to the Administrative Law Judge's attorney advisor. 

SO ORDERED. 

~blv 
Dee Lord 
Administrative Law Judge 

may be required to provide an additional written statement, supported by declarations from 
individuals with personal knowledge, justifying each proposed redaction and specifically 
explaining why the information sought to be redacted meets the definition for confidential 
business information set forth in Commission Rule 201.6(a). 19 C.F.R. § 201.6(a). -
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